
 

 

Memo 
To: City Commission  

From: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 

Date: 1-24-14 

Re:  February 4, 2014 Work Session   

Please find the attached agenda and supporting documentation for the February 4, 2014 Work 
Session.   
 
Item 2 – 41st Street Waterline – Developer Agreement 
 
Please refer to the attached memorandum from John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works, 
regarding the proposed Developer Agreement for the extension of a water main along 41st Street.  
In preparation for the second phase of the King’s Gate development, the developer is proposing to 
extend and upsize the water main along 41st Street.  The City’s estimated share of the upsizing is 
$17,800.  The Developer Agreement, if approved by the Commission, would allow the developer 
to include their share of the cost in the Benefit District when it is created.   
 
Item 3 (Portable Shipping Containers) and Item 4 (Inoperable Vehicle Regulations for Auto Repair 
Businesses) 
 
The Commission asked that these items be placed on the work session agenda for discussion.  
Enclosed in your packet is a brief memo from me on each subject as well as the ordinances in 
question and other miscellaneous supporting documentation.  When the Commission asked to 
place the item on the agenda for discussion, I reviewed the historical enforcement of these 
ordinances.  My findings are as follows.  City staff does enforce both ordinances periodically; 
however, we do not spend an inordinate amount of time addressing each one.  We have limited 
staff, and they spend a majority of their time with planning, development and construction 
inspection matters.  There are also many other forms of nuisances that City staff is tasked with 
addressing.  Just as everyone who speeds in Hays is not issued a citation, not everyone who 
violates a nuisance ordinance is issued an abatement letter.   
 

City of Hays 
Office of the City Manager 



I am very confident that we are not over-enforcing or being abusive in the manner that either of 
these ordinances is being enforced.   
 
With regard to shipping containers, we do send out a few letters a year notifying property owners 
of the regulations regarding shipping containers.  Some of these are generated upon visual 
inspection by an inspector, and some are generated based on complaints received by the 
Planning, Inspection and Enforcement Division.  With regard to inoperable vehicles for auto repair 
businesses, the current ordinance allows inoperable vehicles to be on a property for a period not 
to exceed 30 days.  If an auto repair business chooses to keep an inoperable vehicle longer than 
that period, it must be behind a screen.  City staff does periodically address inoperable vehicles at 
automobile repair businesses; however, this is only done when we are talking years, not days, 
that the vehicle has been at the same location.  City staff does not enforce the inoperable vehicle 
ordinance, with regard to auto repair businesses, in a manner that causes problems with their 
ability to conduct business.   
 
If the Commission should choose to make modifications to either ordinance, City staff would 
gladly enforce them to the level that the Commission decides is prudent.   
 
Item 5 – Resolution of Intent to Develop R9 Ranch 
 
Please refer to the attached memorandum regarding the resolution of intent to develop the R9 
Ranch.  After nearly 60 years of investigation and in-depth studies, it has been determined that 
the R9 Ranch presents the most viable long-term option to the City of Hays’ water needs.  The 
City Commission is being presented with a resolution of intent to develop the R9 Ranch.  If 
approved, this would be the formal go-ahead for City staff to begin the lengthy regulatory process 
of changing the water rights at the R-9 Ranch from irrigation to municipal use as well as changing 
the point of diversion from the R9 Ranch to the City of Hays.   
 
aw 



CITY OF HAYS 
CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2014 – 6:30 P.M.  

AGENDA 
 
 
 
1. ITEM FOR REVIEW: January 16, 2014 Work Session Notes (PAGE 1) 

DEPARTMENT HEAD RESPONSIBLE: Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 
 

2. ITEM FOR REVIEW: 41st Street Waterline – Developer Agreement (PAGE 5) 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RESPONSIBLE: I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 

3. ITEM FOR REVIEW: Portable Shipping Containers (PAGE 11) 
PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 

4. ITEM FOR REVIEW: Inoperable Vehicle Regulations for Auto Repair Businesses (PAGE 21) 
PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 

5. ITEM FOR REVIEW: Resolution of Intent to Develop R9 Ranch (PAGE 31) 
PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 

6. OTHER ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
 
7. EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF REQUIRED)  

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

ANY PERSON WITH A DISABILITY NEEDING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO ATTEND THIS MEETING 
SHOULD CONTACT THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING 
TIME.  EVERY ATTEMPT WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE ANY REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE. 



 



City of Hays 

City Commission 

Work Session Notes 

January 16, 2014 

 

Present:  Kent Steward, Henry Schwaller IV, Eber Phelps, Shaun Musil, Ron 

Mellick, John Bird, Toby Dougherty 

 

January 2, 2014 Work Session Notes 

 There were no corrections or additions to the minutes of the work session 

held on January 2, 2014; the minutes stand approved as presented. 

  

 Chris Miller, owner of Auto Tech, along with approximately 20 members of 

the business community, were in the audience wishing to address the 

Commissioners regarding the City ordinance on inoperable vehicles. 

 Mr. Miller was cited by City staff for having inoperable vehicles on his 

properties for more than 30 days.   A resolution to abate his vehicles is on the 

agenda for the January 23, 2014 Commission meeting.  He feels the City should 

grant business owners special consideration and should be allowed some leeway 

to run their business.  He stated he will have inoperable vehicles on site until they 

are fixed.   

 Commissioner Schwaller stated he understands Mr. Miller’s plight 

because he faces tough regulations in his rental housing business. 

 Scott Simpson, owner of Best Radiator, and Augie Windholz with Augie’s 

Repair and Towing, also addressed the Commissioners regarding this issue.  Mr. 

Windholz stated he, as well as many other businesses owners, hold the vehicles 

until the services are paid for in full; otherwise it is difficult to collect payment. 

 Chairperson Steward stated everyone needs to remember the ordinance 

serves to protect the people of Hays. 

 The Commissioners will address the issue of the abatement of Mr. Miller’s 

vehicles at the January 23, 2014 Commission meeting and will discuss the 

ordinance regarding inoperable vehicles at the work session on February 4, 

2014.   

1



 

Pool Fee Increase 

The City of Hays contracts with the Hays Recreation Commission (HRC) 

to manage the Hays Aquatic Park and Wilson Pool.  At the end of each season, a 

financial review of the pools’ operations is conducted, and recommendations for 

fee changes are made for the following season if necessary. The last fee 

increase took place in 2008.  

In an effort to increase revenue and become consistent with other 

community pools throughout the state, a recommendation is being made to add a 

third tier to the daily admissions at Wilson Pool and the Hays Aquatic Park. The 

Hays Recreation Commission Board and City staff recommend adding a third tier 

fee for individuals age 18 and up. The recommended fee for the third tier at the 

Hays Aquatic Park is $4.00 and Wilson Pool is $3.00 for the 2014 swim season. 

This is a $1.00 increase in daily admission for those 18 and up. 

Commissioner Schwaller is concerned that the rate increase may cause a 

decline in attendance.  

The Commissioners will be requested to approve a third tier fee for area 

pools at the January 23, 2014 Commission meeting.   

 

Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course Tournament Fee Increase  

The Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course Advisory Board reviewed and 

recommended changes to the current tournament fees at the Fort Hays 

Municipal Golf Course. The current policy and fee schedule for tournaments is 

outdated and well below what other courses from across the state receive for 

tournament green fees. The Golf Course Advisory Board and City staff request 

approval of a standard tournament greens fee of $15.00 per person for all 

tournaments at the Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course.   

At the January 23, 2014 Commission meeting, Commissioners will be 

requested to approve the recommendation to proceed with a standard 

tournament greens fee of $15.00 per person for all tournaments at the Fort Hays 

Municipal Golf Course. 

 

 

2



Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course Junior Golf Fees 

The Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course Advisory Board recommends adding 

a Junior Golf Greens Fee for those ages seventeen (17) and under.  The 

Advisory Board hopes that adding a reduced Junior Golf Greens Fee will 

encourage more kids to play golf and help guarantee interest of the younger 

generation for years to come.  The Golf Course Advisory Board and City staff 

recommends approval to add a Junior Golf Greens Fee, for an amount of $10.00, 

beginning March 1, 2014 at the Fort Hays Municipal Golf Course.  

  At the January 23, 2014 Commission meeting the Commissioners 

approval will be requested to add a Junior Golf Greens Fee at the Fort Hays 

Municipal Golf Course. 

 

Resolution for Vehicle Abatement at 412 West 8th Street 

The property located at 412 West 8th Street is in violation of City Ordinance 

Chapter 26 Article II.  The vehicle has no current and legal tags, deeming it 

inoperable.  Letters have been sent per City of Hays Ordinance requirements.    No 

progress has been made on this vehicle.  Staff is now moving forward for abatement 

of the vehicle since the owner of the property has not followed through accordingly.   

If the vehicle is removed by the City, all costs of abatement will be charged to the 

owner of the property. 

The Commissioners will be requested to approve the resolution to abate 

the vehicle located on the property at 412 West 8th Street ten days after the 

approval date at the January 23, 2014 Commission meeting. 

 

Resolution for Vehicle Abatement at 600 and 602 Vine Street 

The property located at 600 and 602 Vine Street is in violation of City 

Ordinance Chapter 26 Article II.  The vehicles have no current and legal tags or are 

otherwise in a state of disrepair deeming them inoperable.  Letters have been sent 

per City of Hays Ordinance requirements.  No progress has been made on these 

vehicles.     If the vehicles are removed by the City, all costs of abatement will be 

charged to the owner of the property. 

3



The Commissioners will be requested to approve the resolution to abate the 

vehicles located on the property at 600 and 602 Vine Street ten days after the 

approval date at the January 23, 2014 Commission meeting. 

Other Items for Discussion 

 Commissioner Schwaller commented that he had read in the paper that 

the City Commission will consider building a convention center.  He wanted to 

clarify that a formal proposal has not been brought before the Commission.   A 

group has been working on this for a number of years, but he can not comment 

on this until something is presented to the Commission. 

 

Executive Session 

 Ron Mellick moved, Henry Schwaller IV seconded, that the Governing 

Body recess to executive session at 8:03 p.m. for 15 minutes to discuss matters 

pertaining to attorney-client privilege information.  The executive session 

included the Commissioners, the City Manager, the Assistant City Manager, and 

the City Attorney.  K.S.A. 75-4319 authorizes the use of executive session to 

discuss the topics stated in the motion. 

   Vote:   Ayes: Kent Steward 

     Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil  

     Ron Mellick 

 No action was taken during executive session. 

 

 

 The work session adjourned at 8:18 p.m. 

 

 

 Submitted by: ______________________________________________ 

     Brenda Kitchen – City Clerk 

4



 

 

Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works  
 
Work Session:   February 4, 2014  
 
Subject:  41st Street Water Main – Developer Agreement  
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
  I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 

Summary 
Covenant Land & Developing, Inc. has proposed a Developer Agreement for the 
extension of the water main along 41st Street adjacent to the King’s Gate Addition. The 
engineers estimate for total construction cost is $85,000.  The estimated City share of cost 
to upsize the waterline to 12” is $17,800.  The project is necessary at this time due to the 
proposed reconstruction of 41st Street.  Staff recommends entering the agreement with the 
developer for the construction of waterline along 41st Street, with the City participating in 
the over sizing of the waterline at a cost not to exceed $17,800 to be funded out of 
Water/Sewer Capital 
 

Background  
41st Street is scheduled to be reconstructed beginning in March 2014, and it is advisable 
to extend the 12” water main along 41st Street prior to the reconstruction of 41st Street.  
Covenant Land & Developing, Inc. is the developer of the King’s Gate Addition, of 
which the public improvements for the first phase have already been constructed.  
Extending the waterline along 41st Street would provide the needed water service for 
future phases of the King’s Gate Addition, and would complete the loop of the water 
main along 41st Street. 
 

Discussion 
Covenant Land & Developing, Inc. has proposed an agreement with the City for the 
extension of the water main along 41st Street, which would allow for the City to pay the 
cost of up sizing the waterline to 12 inches. The attached drawing shows the proposed 
Water Main location and the adjacent Kingsgate Addition.  The engineer’s estimate for 
total construction costs is $85,000.  The cost to over-size the line to 12” is estimated to be 
$17,800, which would be paid by the City at large.  The Developer Agreement would 
allow the developer to apply the cost of the water line to the developer’s share of costs on 
the next phase of the Kings Gate Addition.  See attached Developer Agreement. 
 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 

5



 

 

 

Financial Consideration 
The developer would pay the costs associated with the design and construction of the 
water line.  The City would reimburse the developer for the cost to oversize the line from 
8” to 12” based on actual costs reviewed and approved by City Staff. 
 
The estimated City share for over sizing is $17,800 and would be funded out of 
Water/Sewer Capital. 
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 

 Authorize the City Manager to enter the agreement with Covenant Land & 
Developing, Inc. 

 Provide alternate direction to City Staff 
 Do nothing 

 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends authorizing the City Manager to enter the agreement with Covenant 
Land & Developing, Inc. 
 

Action Requested 
Authorize the City Manager to enter a Developer Agreement with Covenant Land & 
Developing, Inc. for the construction of waterline along 41st Street, with the City 
participating in the cost of over sizing the waterline at a cost not to exceed $17,800 to be 
funded out of Water/Sewer Capital 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Location Map  
Developer Agreement 
 

6



1

1

1

2

2

3

4

5

12

11

8

7

10

9

13

4

5

6

7

3

7

6
5

8

7 6

1

2

3

4

1

6

7

8

9

15

14

13

12

16

17

18

19

20

2

3

6

7

8

9

1

1

32
1

1

6

7

5

6

7

11

12

14

1

2

3

4

8

9

13

1

2

10

11

1213

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

1

2

3

4

8

9

10

15
16

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

18

17

5

B
U

T
T
E
R
F
I
E
L
D

 
R
D

M
A
D

I
S
O

N
 
D

R
I
V
E

W 45TH ST

W
 45TH ST

W 46TH ST

H
O

O
V
E
R
 
D

R

K
I
N

G
'
S
 
G

A
T
E
 
D

R

C
O

V
E
N

A
N

T
 
D

R

K

I

N

G

'

S

 

C

T

W
 4

1
S
T
 S

T

Greenspace

1
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

City of Hays, Public Works Department

41st Street Water Main Developer Agreement

January 2014

Undeveloped Area of

Kings Gate Addition

City Limit

Proposed

Water Main

Proposed

King's Gate

Second Add

Replat of

King's Gate

First Add

7



8



9



10



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   Toby Dougherty, City Manager  
 
Work Session:   February 4, 2014  
 
Subject:  Portable Shipping Containers  
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Commission 
 
 

Summary 
The Commission asked for a discussion of portable shipping containers to be placed on 
the February 4th Work Session agenda for discussion.   
 

Background  
In 2008 the City Commission adopted regulations regarding the use of portable shipping 
containers.  Shipping containers in use at the time of adoption were grandfathered in and 
strict limitations on use were placed on all future use.   
 

Discussion 
As previously mentioned, the regulations have been in place since 2008.  City Staff does 
have to remind people from time to time about the restricted use of these containers.  It is 
estimated that we contact an average of five property owners per year who are in 
violation of this regulation.   
 

Legal Consideration 
The regulations governing shipping containers are part of the building regulations, and 
the Commission can modify if it deems necessary.  There are no known legal obstacles to 
proceeding as recommended by City Staff 
 

Recommendation 
City staff feels the current regulations are functioning adequately.   
 

Action Requested 
The Commission has asked for this item to be placed on for discussion.   
 

Supporting Documentation 
Memo from Jesse Rohr regarding Shipping Containers 
Minutes from the July 24, 2008 City Commission Meeting 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



 

20



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   Toby Dougherty, City Manager  
 
Work Session:   February 4, 2014  
 
Subject:  Inoperable Vehicle Regulations for Auto Repair Businesses

  
Person(s) Responsible:  City Commission 
 
 

Summary 
At the January 16th Work Session, the City Commission asked for a discussion of the 
inoperable vehicle regulations, specific to auto repair businesses, to be placed on the 
February 4th work session agenda.   
 

Background  
Current zoning regulations contain language prohibiting the storage of inoperable 
vehicles on private property.  Auto repair facilities are allowed a small exemption from 
the regulations provided the inoperable vehicles are stored behind a screened fence.  
Regulations prohibiting inoperable vehicles, even at auto repair facilities, have been in 
place as far back as 1973.   
 

Discussion 
At the January 16th Work Session, a local auto repair business owner voiced his 
displeasure at the requirements of the current zoning regulations as enforced by City 
staff.  Attached to this memo is a report dating to 2011 listing the number of vehicles 
abated.  As you can see, staff does not spend a lot of time dealing with abatements of 
vehicles at auto repair businesses.  The report only goes to 2011 as new inspection 
software was implemented that year.   
 

Legal Consideration 
Since this is a matter involving zoning regulations, any consideration to modifying the 
regulations must involve the Planning Commission.   
 

Recommendation 
City staff feels the current regulations are adequate.   
 

Action Requested 
The Commission asked that this item be placed on the agenda for discussion.  Staff 
awaits direction.   
 
 

21



Supporting Documentation 
Vehicle Abatement History 
Section 26 of the Hays Municipal Code 
Section 71-503 of the Hays Municipal Code 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



 

30



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 
Work Session:   February 4, 2014  
 
Subject:  Resolution of Intent to Develop R9 Ranch 
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Toby Dougherty, City Manager  
 
 

Summary 
Maintaining an adequate supply of water has been a priority since the 1950’s.  Hays has 
addressed water shortcomings using conservation programs and efficiency measures.  
While successful in the short term, the measures are not significant enough to ensure the 
current sources will be adequate for a 50+ year planning horizon.  After years of studying 
potential water sources, it has been determined that the R9 Ranch provides the most 
viable long-term option for Hays and the surrounding area.   
 

Background  
Since the 1950’s, adequate water availability has been a pressing concern for Hays.  The 
current sources are limited, subject to drought, and not a viable long-term option given 
the steady growth of the community.  Several different sources have been investigated 
since that time.  In 1994 the City of Hays purchased the 6,700 acre R9 Ranch in Edwards 
County.  Later that year the City of Russell bought 18% of the R9.  The City owns 8,000 
acre-feet of water rights at the R9.  Even after the purchase of the R9 the City continued 
to explore other options to meet the long-term needs.  After 60 years of investigation, it 
has been determined that the most viable long-term option for Hays is the development of 
the R9 Ranch.   
 

Discussion 
Hays is in a very unique situation compared to the other population centers in Kansas due 
to its geographical location.  There are 34 counties in Kansas with a population of over 
15,000.  Thirty-three (33) of these counties are either along or East of Highway 81, where 
surface water flows are reliable, or on a major underground aquifer.  The exception is 
Ellis County.  Quite simply, the locally available water sources are not sufficient to 
sustain the long-term population needs.   
 
Currently, Hays uses on average 2,100 acre feet of water annually.  Hays is the statewide 
leader in water conservation with an average use of 95 gallons per capita daily.  The 
regional average is 172 gallons per capita daily.  Hays was an early adopter of water 
conservation techniques and continues to be at the forefront of the movement.  Millions 
of dollars have been invested in conservation and efficiency programs as well as a 
comprehensive system of effluent water reuse for irrigation.   

31



 
Despite the above-mentioned efforts, local sources continue to be vulnerable to drought, 
climate change, and challenges to aquifer recharge resulting from a decreased runoff due 
to changes in farming practices, as well as the blockage of the Smoky Hill River by 
Cedar Bluff Reservoir.   
 
Hays is one of the few communities in Kansas exhibiting steady growth.  Given this 
growth, it becomes clear that the current water sources will not meet demand in the 
future.  As the limits of the sources are pushed, the impact of drought will become more 
frequent and damaging to the economy.  It is imperative that Hays look at a long-term 
solution.  Hays must not look 15 to 20 years into the future, but 50 to 70 years.  At this 
time, all apparent options have been explored or investigated, and it has been determined 
that the R9 Ranch provides the most viable option for the 50 to 70 year planning horizon.   
 
It is anticipated that the regulatory/permitting process required to develop the R9 will 
take up to seven years, if not longer.  Design, right of way acquisition, and financing 
could easily add another five years.  This means that, if the process were begun 
tomorrow, it could be 2026 before water is made available.  Given the fragile state of the 
current water sources, it is best to not wait until they are no longer viable to begin the 
process to develop the R9.   
 
The R9 is a regional solution to pressing water needs.  In addition to the Cities of Hays 
and Russell, Ellis and Victoria have experienced water shortages in the recent past.  
There are also several smaller rural water districts that are limited by local source 
availability.  Any one of these entities could benefit in the future by development of the 
R9. 
 

Legal Consideration 
City Staff’s recommendation that the Resolution be approved as presented poses no legal 
problem and there are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended. 
 

Financial Consideration 
At this time it is estimated that development of the R9 will cost 65 million dollars.  In 
1992 the residents of Hays voted to implement a ½ cent sales tax to be used for water 
projects.  Some of this money has been used in the past in order to: fund water 
conservation and efficiency programs, create reuse water infrastructure, and maximize 
the yield of current water sources.  However, the majority of sales taxes collected goes 
into a reserve.  At this time there is approximately $27 million available to assist with the 
costs associated with the development of the R9.  This amount will increase in the future.   
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 

 Approve the resolution as presented. 
 Deny the resolution. 
 Provide alternative direction to staff. 

 

Recommendation 
City staff recommends approval of the resolution. 
 

32



Action Requested 
Approve the resolution. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Resolution 
Overview of water sources 
Overview of R9 Ranch 
Comparison of Counties in excess of 15,000 population 
Listing of past water studies 
Summary of past water studies.   
 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63


	2-4-14 Work Session Memo
	2-4-14 Work Session Agenda
	1-16-14 Work Session Notes
	41st Street Water Main - Developer Agreement
	Portable Shipping Containers
	Inoperable Vehicle Regulations for Auto Repair Businesses
	Resolution of Intent to Develop R9 Ranch



